

19th October 2021

In accordance with Paragraphs 8 & 10(2) (b) of Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 I hereby summon you to attend a Meeting of <u>PETERLEE TOWN COUNCIL</u> to be held in the <u>BRANDLING SUITES, SHOTTON HALL, PETERLEE, SR8 2PH</u> on <u>MONDAY 25th OCTOBER 2021 at 6.30pm</u>

Ian Morris, P.S.L.C.C Town Clerk (Proper Officer of the Council)

Members of the Committee and members of the public are reminded that the public part of the meeting may be recorded in both audio and video, and photographs may be taken.

Due to the current COVID situation the capacity of the meeting room is significantly reduced and public admission to the meeting will be limited. Any members of the public wishing to attend Shotton Hall to observe the meeting are strongly advised to contact the Council in advance to reserve a seat: council@peterlee.gov.uk or 0191 5862491

BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED

- 1. Apologies for Absence
- Public Participation Session
 Will be held to allow Members of the public an opportunity to put questions to the Council. This item of business to last no more than 15 minutes, as per Council Standing Orders.

3. <u>To receive declarations of interest</u>

Members are reminded of the need to disclose any interests in items on this agenda, whether pecuniary or otherwise. Please seek advice from the Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk **prior to the meeting** if in doubt. Members are reminded that they can check their published declaration of interests here: <u>https://bit.ly/2wVyeLA</u>

4. <u>Citizens Advice County Durham</u>

To Welcome Sarah Ward and her colleague to the meeting to provide an update on their Funded Benefits Project

- <u>To Approve the Minutes of the last meeting of the 27th September 2021</u>
 The minutes of the previous meeting are attached for consideration and approval as a true and correct record. (attached)
- <u>Report of the Community & Environment of the 11th October 2021</u>
 The minutes of the Resources Meeting are attached for information of Members (attached)
- <u>The notes of the Events Working Party of the 6th October 2021</u>
 The notes of the Event Working Party are attached for the information of Members (attached)
- Notes of the Finance Sub Committee of the 25th October 2021 To confirm and endorse the resolution of the Finance Sub Committee of 25th October 2021 to approve BACS payments to be paid on 28th October 2021.
- <u>COVID-19 Update</u>
 To receive an update from the Town Clerk on the Council's response to the COVID-19 situation.
 (verbal report of the Town Clerk)
- 10. <u>Policies</u>

The following policy is an update of the current policy and is for consideration, approval and adoption by Peterlee Town Council (a draft copy of the policy is available via the link given below, or in hard copy from the Deputy Town Clerk on request).

- Pensions & Flexible Retirement and Retirement Policy https://bit.ly/3DzXqrK
- 11. <u>To review the arrangements for the opening and closing of the gate at the car park</u> adjacent to the CALM CIC community hub at Lowhills Road

Item requested by Cllr Scott Meikle following complaints about the car park being left locked during some week days and weekends.

12. <u>Pavilion Roof Repair</u>

To consider the report of the Pavilion Manager seeking approval to award a contract for the repair of the Pavilion Roof

(Report of the Pavilion Manager attached)

13. Spokesperson of the North East Party's Report

14. <u>Spokesperson of the Labour Political Party's Report</u>

PETERLEE TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL

HELD IN THE BRANDLING SUITE, SHOTTON HALL, PETERLEE

ON MONDAY 27TH SEPTEMBER 2021 at 6.30PM

PRESENT:- COUN R MOORE (CHAIR)

Mesdames:- S Simpson, K Liddell, H Stockport, J Black, D Howarth, K Duffy &

E Watson

Messrs:- S Franklin, G Johnson, B Fishwick, D Hawley, R Burnip & T Duffy

66. <u>Apologies for Absence</u> Apologies for absence were offered and accepted from Councillors D Quinn, M A Cartwright & M Sanderson.

67. <u>Public Participation Session</u> There were no members of the public present.

- 68. <u>To receive declarations of interest</u> Members were reminded of the need to disclose any interests in items on this agenda, whether pecuniary or otherwise. Cllr K Liddell declared interest in item 4 on the agenda, regarding the refund request from Peterlee Helford FC U11's as her grandson played for the Team.
- 69. <u>Request for refund of football pitch fees for the last season 2021-22 from Peterlee</u> <u>Helford FC U11's</u>

The Town Clerk gave a summary of the report submitted to Council. All Members participated in a vote and all Members present, with the exception of Cllr K Liddell who was excluded from the vote due to declaring an interest in this item, voted to deny the request.

RESOLVED Members denied the refund request of football pitch fees.

Council Minutes of the meeting held on Monday 27th September 2021

- To Approve the Minutes of the last meeting of the 16th August 2021
 The minutes of the previous meeting were attached for consideration and approval.
 RESOLVED the minutes be accepted and signed as a true and correct record.
- 71. <u>Report of the Community & Environment Committee of the 13th September 2021</u> The minutes of the Community & Environment Meeting were attached for information. **RESOLVED the information given, be noted.**
- The notes of the Events Working Party of the 6th September 2021 The notes of the Event Working Party were attached for the information of Members.
 RESOLVED the information given, be noted.
- The notes of the Finance Sub Committee of the 27th September 2021
 The notes of the Event Working Party were attached for the information of Members.
 RESOLVED the information given, be noted.
- 74. <u>Notice of conclusion of the External Audit</u> Members were given a verbal report from the Town Clerk, giving a brief overview of the audit outcome and celebrated the success of receiving an 'unqualified' audit, with no minor issues to address for the following financial year.

RESOLVED the notice of the conclusion of the external audit, be accepted and advertised on the councils web site.

75. COVID-19 Update

The Clerk gave a brief verbal update on the Council's response to the COVID-19 situation. **RESOLVED the information given be noted.**

76. Spokesperson of the North East Party's Report

Councillor K Duffy congratulated Peterlee Town Council on receiving an 'Unqualified' rating in the external audit and Members were excited to see the plans for the Town Centre and asking MP Grahame Morris to get behind this as she felt Peterlee was the feeder Town for and will have a knock-on effect surrounding villages. **RESOLVED the information given be noted.**

77. <u>Spokesperson of the Labour Political Party's Report</u> Councillor Burnip congratulated Peterlee Town Council on the outcome of the external audit. **RESOLVED the report be noted.**

THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE HELD IN THE BANQUETING SUITES, SHOTTON HALL, PETERLEE ON MONDAY 11TH OCTOBER 2021 AT 6.30PM

PRESENT: M A CARTWRIGHT (CHAIR)

Mesdames:- K Liddell, D Quinn, K Duffy, S Simpson, M McCue, S McDonnell & J Black

Messrs:- D Hawley, B Fishwick, M Sanderson, R Burnip, S P Franklin, R Moore & T Duffy

The Chairman advised Members of the committee that part of the meeting may be recorded by both audio and video, and it may be that photographs were taken.

6. <u>Apologies for Absence</u>

Apologies were submitted by Councillors K Hawley, D Howarth, G Johnson, E Watson, and S Meikle.

RESOLVED the Council approve the reason submitted for absence received from these Councillors, and their apologies for absence be recorded.

- <u>To receive declarations of interest</u>
 Members were reminded of the need to disclose any interests in items on this agenda, whether pecuniary or otherwise. None were given.
- To Approve the Minutes of the Last Meeting The Minutes of the last meeting held on 6th September 2021, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member were approved.

9. <u>To welcome Joy Allen, Police & Crime Commissioner to the meeting</u>

The Chair welcomed Joy Allen to the meeting and handed over to her. Ms Allen advised her office had undertaken an online survey with the public during October and December 2020 with over 1,200 people responding on what they felt the Police priorities should be, as well as expressing a wide variety of views. She advised the top 5 priorities were anti Social behaviour, drug use and drug dealing; fly tipping; speeding/off road bikes and vandalism. With the information collected, she was preparing a draft plan for consultation and feedback and the Town Council would be included in this exercise.

Ms Allen addressed the questions that had posed by Council/councillors prior to the meeting. She encouraged Councillors to sign up to the "In the Know" service where

Minutes of the Community & Environment Committee of the 11 October 2021

already 10,000 people had already signed up. There was also a "Fearless" service which was a Crime Stoppers for young people to use.

There was considerable discussion on the use of the 101 service along with the new custody site proposals for Spennymoor.

In closing Ms Allen thanked the Council for the opportunity to come along to the meeting and she assured she would be happy to return to provide a progress report.

RESOLVED Ms Allen be thanked for her attendance and the information provided, be noted.

10. <u>To review the arrangements for the opening and closing of the gate the car park adjacent</u> to the CALM CIC community hub at Lowhills Road

This item had been requested by Cllr Scott Meikle following complaints about the car park being left locked during some week days and weekends. Councillor Meikle was unable to attend the meeting and asked that the item be deferred. **RESOLVED the information given, be noted and Councillor Meikle submit a Notice of Motion should he wish for this item to be reconsidered.**

11. Eden Lane Woodland Park Proposal

Members were presented with a report from the Parks Manager and Town Clerk on a proposed community woodland creation project for the 'pony fields' area off Eden Lane. Members were asked to approve the proposal to plant several thousand new trees on the site in a project that had been developed in partnership with Durham County Council. Members fully supported the proposals and asked to be involved where possible. **RESOLVED the information given be noted and approval be given to the proposals outlined in the report.**

THE NOTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EVENTS WORKING PARTY HELD IN THE BRANDLING SUITE, SHOTTON HALL, PETERLEE ON WEDNESDAY 6TH OCTOBER 2021 AT 10.00am

Present: Cllr K Hawley (Chair)

Councillors: S Simpson, J Black, M Sanderson, M McCue, B Fishwick & R Moore Officers: J Hugill, L Freeman, L Hudson & K Tweddle

1. <u>Apologies for Absence</u>

Apologies for absence were offered and accepted from Councillors K Duffy & M A Cartwright.

2. <u>The Notes from the last meeting held on 6th September 2021</u> were considered and agreed as a true and correct record.

3. <u>Fireworks Event – Friday 5th November 2021</u>

Progress with the arrangements for this event were given to the meeting. It was reported a grant application had been made to DCC for funding towards the cost of hosting this event.

4. <u>Remembrance Day Event, Sunday 14th November 2021</u>

A verbal update on the organisation and arrangements for this event were given by the Corporate Services Manager.

5. <u>Christmas Tree Lighting</u>, 3rd December 2021

Further consideration was given to this event along with a verbal update by the Corporate Services Manager.

6. <u>Music Festival event, Saturday 18th & Sunday 19th June 2022</u>

The Group considered and agreed a name for the event, "Peterlee Music Fest 2022"

A verbal update report was provided by the Corporate Services Manager, she advised the event would be a ticket event held inside the fence of the cricket ground closing at 10.30pm each night. Bands already booked to perform were tribute bands for Bon Jovi, Thin Lizzy and Queen on the Saturday with local bands playing on the afternoon, and Sunday would be an Electric 80's themed day with tribute bands Duran Duran, UB40, Madness and the Pet Shop Boys. She anticipated early bird tickets being offered for sale from November 2021 via ticketsource. It was agreed the action taken in this regard, be endorsed.

7. Fun Fair -Request made by Colin Noble for 2022

A verbal report will be made by the Corporate Services Manager on the request made to host an event modelled on the Peterlee Show. It was agreed Mr Colin Noble, (Jnr) be invited to come to a future meeting to provide the exact details for the Working Party to consider.

8. <u>Food Festival</u>

The Corporate Services Manager reported on this item and it was agreed her Team get in touch with Seaham and Bishop Aukland on what they charge for the stalls and did they provide their own gazebos.

9. <u>Christmas Fair/Market</u>

It was reported the Sports Development & Well Being Assistant was organizing an event at The Pavilion on 14th November 2021.



Pensions & Flexible Retirement, Retirement Policy

The policy applies to all Council employees that are currently active or deferred members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Janet Hugill Corporate Services Manager October 2021

Table of Contents

Introduction and Background2
Purpose of the Policy
Equalities Statement4
Council Pensions Policy4
Granting Additional Pension to a Member5
Shared Cost Additional Pension5
Contributions5
Rule of 85
Waiving Actuarial Reductions on Early Retirement, Flexible Retirement and III Health Retirement6
Flexible Retirement Policy
Early Retirement Policy
Application Procedure9
Appeals10
Financial Implications for Staff
Complaints
The Retirement Process
The process
What can delay payment of my retirement benefits12
Deferred Retirement
The process
Form S20 - Notification of Leaver Form14

Introduction and Background

All employees of the Town Council are eligible to participate in the Local Government Pension Scheme, which is a defined benefit pension scheme.

A defined benefit pension scheme is one where the scheme rules define the benefits payable to members independently of the contributions payable, and the scheme may be funded or unfunded.

The Administering Authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme in County Durham is Durham County Council.

Durham County Council operates the scheme in accordance with the various pensions regulations as follows:

- Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008
- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) Regulations 2014
- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Employers and employees participating in the Pension Scheme will pay contributions and receive benefits in accordance with the requirements of these regulations and the rules and requirements of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Employers' and employees' contributions are determined by the Pension Fund actuary on a triennial basis and are set to meet 100% of the liabilities of the Fund, in accordance with the relevant Government regulations.

The Council's contribution towards participating employee's pensions is currently set at 19.1% of pensionable pay for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20. Employees' contributions currently range from 5.5% to 8.5% of pensionable pay depending upon the level of salary.

Further information about the Durham County Local Government Pension Scheme including the various rules and regulations, membership details, contribution rates and benefits payable are available from the Pensions Department at Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham, DH1 5UE.

The Council needs to have in place a Retirement and Pensions Policy, because the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations require each Employing Authority to formulate, publish and keep under review a policy statement in relation to the exercise of a number of discretions which employers can use under the Scheme.

There are many discretions which local government employers may exercise, but the regulations require that all LGPS employers must have a policy on the following five discretions:

• Whether to grant additional annual pension of up to £6,500 per annum (figure as at 1st April 2014) to an active scheme member, or within six months to a member whose employment was terminated on the grounds of redundancy or business efficiency

• Where a scheme member wishes to purchase additional annual pension of up to £6,500 (figure at 1st April 2014) by making Additional Pension Contributions (APC's), to voluntarily contribute towards the cost by making either a regular or lump sum additional pension contribution to member's account (part or whole funding this), via a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contribution

• Whether to allow the rule of 85 to be 'switched on' and grant application for early payment of benefits, to members who would normally meet the rule but who will not if they voluntarily draw their benefits from age 55 to 59 (for both active and deferred members)

• Whether to permit flexible retirement for staff aged 55 or over, allowing all or some pension benefits to be paid if a member wishes to reduce their working hours and/or grade and continue to work, and whether to waive some or all of any actuarial reduction that would apply on the flexible retirement

• Whether to waive, in whole or in part, actuarial reduction on benefits when a scheme member voluntarily draws their pension benefits before their Normal Pension Age, for both active and deferred members and those on suspended tier 3 ill health retirements.

Purpose of the Policy

The purpose of this policy is to set out the Council's position in respect of the above areas of employer discretion in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme, and, most importantly for Council staff, in relation to the consideration of flexible and early retirement requests. The aims of the policy are to:

• Provide a summary of the Local Government Pension Scheme regulations regarding employer discretions

• Put in place a standard procedure for employees wishing to make an application for employer discretion in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme or for early or flexible retirement

• Make clear the Council's policy on managing requests for early or flexible retirement and other employer discretions

• Set out the principles and criteria by which the Council will assess requests for early or flexible retirement and other employer discretions.

Equalities Statement

Peterlee Town Council are committed to the removal of all barriers preventing access to our services arising from age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage & civil partnership, pregnancy & maternity, race, religion & belief, sex or sexual orientation.

Council Pensions Policy

The policy applies to all Council employees that are currently active or deferred members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

The policy has been largely based on and is consistent with the Durham County Council policy on employer discretions.

It can, therefore, be assumed that the Council's policy in relation to any non-statutory discretion not already covered by this policy will be in line with the County Council policy.

It is also important to note that this Policy is not a substitute for the statutory requirements of the LGPS.

This policy will be reviewed at least every five years or as required by law.

The key considerations in preparing this policy were as follows:-

1. Cost and value for money – all requests for employer discretion will be considered against the key issue of affordability

2. Operational requirements - all requests for employer discretion will be considered taking into account the operational requirements of the service in question

3. Anti-discrimination laws – all requests for employer discretion will be considered taking into account all applicable anti-discrimination laws and will be applied fairly and consistently.

The Council's Policy on each of the required employer discretions is set out in the following sections of the Retirement Policy.

Granting Additional Pension to a Member

This discretion applies to whether the Council wishes to grant additional annual pension of up to £6,500 per annum (figure as at 1st April 2014) to an active scheme member, or within six months to a member whose employment was terminated on the grounds of redundancy or business efficiency.

The Council's policy on the above is that it will only consider exercising this discretion where it is in the Council's financial and operational interests to do so.

Shared Cost Additional Pension

Contributions

This discretion applies where a scheme member wishes to purchase additional annual pension of up to £6,500 (figure at 1st April 2014) by making Additional Pension Contributions (APCs), the Council wishes to voluntarily contribute towards the cost by making either a regular or lump sum additional pension contribution to a member's account (part or whole funding this), via a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contribution.

The Council's policy on the above is that it will only consider exercising this discretion where it is in the Council's financial and operational interests to do so.

Rule of 85

The Rule of 85 is a feature of the Local Government Pension Scheme under which an employee who is aged over 55 can retire if the employee's age and length of service, together total 85. This feature can benefit the employee and the employer.

This discretion applies to whether the Council wishes to allow the rule of 85 to be 'switched on' and grant application for early payment of benefits, for members who would normally meet the rule but who will not if they voluntarily draw their benefits from age 55 to 59 and applies for both active and deferred members.

The Council's policy on the above is that it will only consider exercising this discretion where it is in the Council's financial and operational interests to do so.

Waiving Actuarial Reductions on Early Retirement, Flexible Retirement and III Health Retirement

This discretion applies to whether the Council wishes to waive, in whole or in part, actuarial reduction on benefits paid when a scheme member voluntarily draws their pension benefits before their Normal Pension Age, and applies for both active and deferred members and those on suspended tier 3 ill health retirements.

The Council's policy on the above is that it will only consider exercising this discretion where it is in the Council's financial and operational interests to do so.

Flexible Retirement Policy

The Local Government Pension Scheme allows scheme members who are aged 55 or over to request 'flexible retirement' whereby the scheme member can, with their employer's consent, reduce their hours or grade, and elect to have their pension benefits be paid to them whilst they remain in employment. It also has the advantages that it can:

- Enable the Council to retain or attain a balanced age profile within the workforce
- Enable the transfer of skills/knowledge
- Offer the opportunity of better succession planning
- Facilitate the retention of skills, knowledge and contacts
- Offer an acceptable solution to staff who are currently a blockage to promotion or reorganisation
- Help alleviate burn-out and stress
- Improve morale
- Offer the flexibility and productivity associated with part-time working

Assist staff to:

- Ease down into retirement
- Make a gradual adjustment to life without paid employment
- Gradually break free of the routine and habits of work
- Keep mentally/physically active

There are therefore two options available to employees wishing to apply for flexible retirement:

- Appropriate and manageable reduction in working hours and,
- Reduction in grade and / or reduced responsibilities

Under the second option, an employee could also apply for a lower graded post if a suitable post was available and vacant. The Council will consider applications for flexible retirement on an individual basis. Decisions will be made on the merits of each case and will be considered primarily in the following context:

• The proposed reduction in hours or grade required to facilitate flexible retirement must be compatible with the operational requirements of the service in question; and,

• A flexible retirement request which causes a cost to the Council (including a except in exceptional circumstances.

Exceptional circumstances for the purposes of the consideration of flexible retirement requests are defined as follows:

• Circumstances where it is considered in the best interests of the Council to pay the cost and where there are sound financial reasons for doing so

• Or on the grounds of compassion, where in the opinion of the Council the special factors surrounding the application, along with the appropriate supporting evidence provided, justify granting the request, subject to the Council's ability to meet the cost.

In considering the operational requirements of the Council, the following will be considered in coming to a decision on flexible retirement requests:

- Additional costs to the service area and Council
- Effect on ability to meet service and customer needs
- Ability to reorganise work amongst existing employees
- Ability to recruit additional or replacement staff
- Impact of service quality and performance
- Sufficiency of work during periods the employee wishes to work

Where an application for flexible retirement is approved based upon a reduction in grade, the associated variation in duties and responsibilities will be incorporated in a revised job

description. The change will constitute a permanent change to the contract of employment and a new written statement of particulars will be issued to the employee.

Requests from the employee for further changes to terms and conditions will only be considered as part of an additional application for a variation to the terms of the approved flexible retirement. This will be considered in the context of the operational requirements of the Council and the provisions of the pension regulations.

All decisions on flexible retirement will be properly communicated to employees, including specific details of the reasons for the decision made.

Early Retirement Policy

The Local Government Pension Scheme also allows employers discretion regarding early retirement requests.

However, this section of the policy is intended to provide some further guidance for staff as to how the Council will consider early retirement requests made by employees.

Please note that early retirement on the grounds of redundancy would be considered under the provisions of the Council's Redundancy Policy.

The Council will consider applications for early retirement on an individual basis.

Consideration will be initially by the Council's senior management team, and if supported, will be reported to and considered by the Council's Special Sub Committee.

Decisions will be made on the merits of each case and will be considered in the following context:

• The request for early retirement must be compatible with the operational requirements of the service in question

• A request for early retirement which causes a cost to the Council (including any request to waive some or all of the actuarial reductions that apply) would normally be refused except in exceptional circumstances.

Exceptional circumstances for the purposes of the consideration of early retirement requests are defined as follows:

• Circumstances where it is considered in the best interests of the Council to pay the cost and where there are sound financial reasons for doing so; or,

• On the grounds of compassion, where in the opinion of the Council the special factors surrounding the application, along with the appropriate supporting evidence provided, justify granting the request, subject to the Council's ability to meet the cost.

In considering the operational requirements of the Council, the following will be considered in coming to a decision on early retirement requests:

- Additional costs to the Council
- Effect on ability to meet service and customer needs
- Ability to reorganise work amongst existing employees
- Ability to recruit additional or replacement staff
- Impact on service quality and performance.

All decisions on early retirement will be properly communicated to employees, including specific details of the reasons for the decision made.

Application Procedure

To apply for a Local Government Pension Scheme discretion including a request for flexible or early retirement, an employee must submit a formal request in writing to their line manager in the first instance.

Making an application does not give an employee automatic right to the discretion or to early or flexible retirement.

However, the Council will give proper consideration to all requests in line with the criteria set out in this Policy.

The line manager will arrange to meet with the employee to discuss any requests in more detail and consider whether it can be accommodated. This meeting should take place within 2 weeks of the request being made.

The line manager will then consider the request and make a recommendation to the senior management team as to whether the request can be accommodated whilst safeguarding the operational requirements of the service in question.

The Senior Management Team will then consider the line manager's recommendation and make a final decision based on the criteria set out in the Policy and make a recommendation to the Council's Special Sub Committee for consideration and approval.

Employees can only make an application for early or flexible retirement once in any twelve month period.

If an employee wishes to withdraw an application for early or flexible retirement, they must do so in writing to their line manager.

As outlined above, employees should be aware that in relation to flexible retirement applications, any approved changes to working hours or grade will be treated as a permanent change to contract and there will be no right to revert to the former working arrangements.

Appeals

An employee has fourteen calendar days from receiving notification of any rejection to set out their grounds for an appeal in writing.

Appeals will be considered by the Council's Appeals Sub Committee.

Financial Implications for Staff

The Town Council does not provide financial advice regarding applications for flexible or early retirement. In considering flexible and early retirement requests, employees are strongly advised to seek independent financial advice and obtain estimates of future benefits from the Pensions Department at Durham County Council.

Complaints

If an employee has a complaint regarding the application of this policy can be raised using the Council's Complaints Procedure.

The Retirement Process

The information on this page aims to explain the retirement process from the point of handing in your notice to your employer (active members) or requesting release of your deferred benefits.

Active members

Please read the following guidance which aims to explain when an active member is able to retire and the impact this has on their pension benefits. <u>When can I retire?</u>

The process

Step:

- 1. Hand in your notice to your employer. Benefits can not be paid if you are still in employment, however there are certain exceptions (read for guidance about flexible retirement LINK). Your required period of notice will be in your contract.
- Once your notification of retirement has filtered through your employers internal procedures and been finalised a 'notification of leaver' form is sent to Durham Pension Fund (the fund) to begin the retirement process.
 Please note: 'the fund' are unable to act until official notice from the employer is received.
- 3. The Pensions Team also require a calculation of your final pay from your Employer. Without this information 'the fund' are unable to carry out any calculations and provide the scheme member with an illustration of benefits due. Most employers do not submit this information until after the employee has received their final salary payment.
- 4. Once in receipt of the leaver notification and pay calculation the Pensions Team will begin the retirement process. This involves several data accuracy checks on the pension record. A pension benefit calculation will then be produced using the pay figures supplied by the Employer. Once authorised this illustration of benefits is sent to the individual along with a number of forms to complete and return. Any delay in submission of this paperwork will affect the ability of 'the fund' to put benefits in to payment.
- 5. Once the paperwork is returned, the necessary checks will be carried out to ensure that everything has been filled in correctly. Quite often forms are returned

incomplete which then need sending back to the individual before pensions can be paid. Please take care when completing retirement paperwork and ensure all parts are completed fully and accurately.

Once 'the fund' are satisfied that they have all of the information required to complete the retirement, a final calculation will be processed. After the calculation has been authorised the pension can be put into payment and any lump sum paid (if applicable).

6. A final letter is sent to the scheme member, giving details of when payment of the annual pension will begin (plus notification of any arrears due) and when the member can expect to receive payment of the lump sum into their bank account.

What can delay payment of my retirement benefits

A number of factors can cause a delay in 'the fund' being able to process a retirement and make payment:

- The employer being late to send a notification of retirement to 'the fund' will affect the time taken to process the case
- Late receipt of pensionable pay information or inaccurate information submitted. In either case 'the fund' needs to ensure they have all of the required information and what has been supplied is accurate before any calculations can be processed.
- Software errors. Occasionally the administration software will find errors on a file or with a calculation which requires rectification from our software providers. Depending on the urgency of the case 'the fund' will make a decision to either wait for the 'fix' or to perform a manual calculation. Both scenarios may cause a delay.
- Delay in the member returning the retirement paperwork or forms returned are incomplete. As long as the forms are returned promptly by the member and are filled in correctly the turn around in finalising the case and making payment is really quick. If 'the fund' are required to chase up submission or send out replacement forms due then delays will be incurred.

Deferred Retirement

Please read the following guidance which aims to explain when deferred benefits are due for payment and possible reductions incurred if benefits are released early. <u>When can I have my pension?</u>

The process

Step:

- Your deferred pension will be increased each year in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and you will receive a statement from 'the fund' on 31st August informing you of the new value of pension and lump sum. The statement will also include the date at which your benefits can be paid without any early retirement reductions.
- 2. It is policy for 'the fund' to contact you in the month prior to your unreduced payment date with paperwork to be completed in order for you to claim your retirement benefits. You will not be sent any claim forms earlier than this date unless you initiate the request yourself.
- 3. Once you have reached age 55 you can claim your deferred benefits early. If you choose to do this, early retirement reductions will be applied to your pension and lump sum. Rather than contact 'the fund' requesting an illustration of benefits you can perform your own estimate on this portal. It is company policy to only provide one estimate per 12 months. By doing it yourself you can produce multiple estimates based on different dates this will help you find a date which best suits your circumstances. Follow this link to use the <u>Retirement Quote</u>
- 4. As soon as the retirement process has been initiated by the deferred member the relevant calculations will be performed by 'the fund'. These calculations will go through the same checking/authorisation stages as an active retirement and once approved an illustration of benefits will be sent to the member along with a retirement pack to complete.
- 5. Upon receipt of the returned paperwork 'the fund' will ensure that all forms are returned and are completed correctly. If any forms are found to be completed incorrectly, they will be returned, which can cause delays in payments being made.

- 6. As soon as 'the fund' is satisfied all paperwork is present and correct, a final calculation will be processed and arrangements made to pay the annual pension and lump sum. A letter will be sent to the member informing them of payment dates and amounts.
- 7. The case will then be closed. Notification of inflationary increases will be sent to the member each April following completion of the pension increase exercise.

Author of Policy;	Janet Hugill
Date effective from;	October 2021
Policy review;	October 2024
Version Control;	V2

FORM S20: NOTIFICATION OF LEAVER OR OPT-OUT



Durham County Council Pension Fund

EMPLOYER

Please forward the completed form to Pensions once the leaving date is known.

Post to: Pensions, County Hall, Durham DH1 5UL: Email: pensions@durham.gov.uk

Member Details

										-
Full name				N	lr	Mrs	Miss	Ms	;	Other
Address										
					P	ostcod	е			
Job title					Pa	ayroll r	number			
Service					N	ational	Insura	nce		
area					ทเ	umber				
Date of birth	า				D	ate of	leaving	or		
					op	oting o	ut of thi	s		
					ро	ost				

Reason for leaving						
Please tick appropriate boxes below $$						
Resignation/Opted out*	*delete a	is appro	opriate			
End of fixed term contract						
Dismissal						
Death						
III health retirement	Tier 1		Tier 2		Tier 3	
Leaver age over 55	Normal Pension Age					
	Late retirement					
	Early ret	irement	t			
Employer wishes to waive	This will	result i	n a cos	t to th	ne employe	er
reductions						
Redundancy or business efficiency	Age less	than 5	5		Age over	55
Flexible retirement						
Other						
Additional information						

.....

Employer Authorisation

Completed by	Signed	Position
Date	Telephone No.	

FORM S20: NOTIFICATION OF LEAVER OR OPT-OUT



Durham County Council Pension Fund

Pensionable Pay Information

Final Day 0000 askama dafinitian		
Final Pay - 2008 scheme definition:		
The pensionable remuneration for the year		
ending at the date of leaving or either of the two		
previous years if greater.		
Please identify any amounts included in the		
above figure which do not represent normal		
pay.		
2014 Scheme Membership	Main Section	50/50 Section
Please supply information in respect of current	Date from:	Date from:
tax year.	Date to:	Date to:
Cumulative pensionable pay – 2014 scheme	Main Section	50/50 Section
definition: The pensionable pay for the current		
tax year from 1 April to leaving date		
Cumulative Additional Pension		
Contributions (APCs) paid in respect of this		
employment by the employee		
Cumulative Additional Pension		
Contributions (APCs) paid in respect of this		
employment by the employer		
Pension Contributions paid in the current tax	Main Section	50/50 Section
year		
Hours worked		
Married women and widows: Has the employee		
ever paid reduced rate National Insurance		
contributions prior to their 60 th birthday.		
Annual rate of pay at date of leaving		
Are there any further payments of salary due for		
this employee?		
Early retirement: How much additional service		
has been granted?		
Redundancy payment £		

Additional information

.....

Employer Authorisation

Completed by	Signed	Position
Date	Telephone No.	

What is pensionable pay?

LGPS 2014

An employee's pensionable pay is the total of:

- All the salary, wages, fees and other payments paid to the employee, and
- Any benefit specified in the employee's contract of employment as being a pensionable emolument.

But an employee's pensionable pay does not include:

- Any sum which has not had income tax liability determined on it.
- Any travelling, subsistence or other allowance paid in respect of expenses incurred in relation to the employment.
- Any payment in consideration of loss of holidays.
- Any payment in lieu of notice to terminate a contract of employment.
- Any payment as an inducement not to terminate employment before the payment is made.
- Any amount treated as the money value to the employee of the provision of a motor vehicle or any amount paid in lieu of such provision.
- Any payment in consideration of loss of future pensionable payments or benefits.
- Any award of compensation (excluding any sum representing arrears of pay) for the purpose of achieving equal pay in relation to other employees.
- Any payment made by the Scheme employer to a member on reserve forces leave.
- Returning officer, or acting returning officer fees other than fees paid in respect of:
 - o Local government elections.
 - Elections for the National Assembly for Wales
 - o Parliamentary elections, or
 - European Parliamentary elections.

LGPS 2008 - as above, but excludes overtime and certain payments in respect of additional hours

Report To:	Peterlee Town Council
Date:	25 October 2021
Subject:	Pavilion roof repairs
Report of:	Andrew Frankcom, Pavilion Manager
Purpose:	To seek approval to award a contract for the repair of numerous leaks to the Pavilion roof at a cost of £4,800 + VAT
Background:	The Pavilion Sport & Community Centre was constructed in 2010 with a roof made of pressed aluminium sheeting joined by rivets with glued seams. Over time these materials have weathered, and various leaks have occurred. Some of these leaks have been intermittent depending upon the severity of the rain (or snow) and the wind direction. This has also made them surprisingly difficult to pin-point. Recently the leaks have been more frequent and widespread and as result it has been necessary to replace several ceiling tiles that have been damaged due to water ingress. We set out to find a contractor to identify the problem(s) and provide a quotation. However, because of the current pandemic situation and demand in the construction industry after inviting 5 companies (A to E) to provide a written quotation only two companies attended on site to inspect the work required and from those only one (Company A) followed the exercise through to a quote.
Quotation	Company A, Roof Guardian, reported that the various leaks are caused by a build of grime and moss on the roof which is causing water to pool and then find its way in to the building via weathered joints. They have proposed to clean all affected areas and re-seal joints with fibreglass GRP Desmopol. Their quote for this work is £4,800 + VAT (£5,760 inc VAT) Members are asked to note that due to the unforeseen nature of the roof leaks this cleaning and re-sealing of the roof was not budgeted for in the current financial year and as such this will result in an overspend in the Pavilion's repairs & maintenance budget which currently has around £xxxx of unspent balance.
Recommendation:	Members are recommended to accept the quotation from Company A, Roof Guardian Ltd, at a cost of £4,800 + VAT

Appendix 1: Implications

Finance – The repair work for the roof leaks was unforeseen and not included in this year's repairs & maintenance budget. As such this expenditure will result in the budget being overspent for this budget year.

Staffing - no direct implications

Risk – if this work is not carried there is high likelihood of further deterioration of the building fabric and decoration, and could result in the cancellation of activities at short notice if water ingress poses and health and safety risk for staff and customers.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - no direct implications

Accommodation – the recommended expenditure relates to the repair of Council office and service provision accommodation.

Crime and Disorder - no direct implications

Human Rights - no direct implications

Consultation – no direct implications

Procurement – the procurement of the proposed works was carried out in line with financial regulations with five local reputable roofing contractors invited to submit quotes. Only two of these contractors actually attended the site and only one submitted a quote for the works.

Disability Issues - no direct implications

Legal Implications – no direct implications